
Select Committee Agenda

1

Governance Select Committee
Tuesday, 3rd October, 2017
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Governance Select Committee, which will be 
held at: 

Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Tuesday, 3rd October, 2017
at 7.15 pm .

Glen Chipp
Chief Executive

Democratic Services 
Officer

J Leither
Tel: (01992) 564756  Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:

Councillors N Avey (Chairman), G Chambers (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, L Hughes, 
S Jones, H Kauffman, M McEwen, L Mead, B Rolfe, D Stallan, B Surtees and D Wixley

SUBSTITUTE NOMINATION DEADLINE:

7.15 pm

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

(Director of Governance)  To report the appointment of any substitute members for the 
meeting.

3. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 46)

(Director of Governance) To agree the notes of the meeting of the Select Committee 
held on 4 July 2017.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Director of Governance). To declare interests in any items on the agenda.

In considering whether to declare a pecuniary or a non-pecuniary interest under the 



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 3 October 2017

2

Code of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 9 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements.

This requires the declaration of a non-pecuniary interest in any matter before an OS 
Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or Sub 
Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member.

Paragraph 9 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter.

5. TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 47 - 50)

(Chairman / Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the 
Terms of Reference of this Committee. This is attached along with an ongoing work
programme. Members are asked at each meeting to review both documents.

6. EQUALITY OBJECTIVES 2016-2020 / (2018-2023) - 6 MONTHLY REVIEW AND 
COMBINED ANNUAL REPORT  (Pages 51 - 68)

(Director of Governance) To consider the attached report.

7. LOCAL AND PARLIAMENTARY ELECTIONS 2017 - REVIEW  (Pages 69 - 74)

(Director of Governance) To consider the attached report.

8. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2017/18 - QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE  
(Pages 75 - 80)

(Director of Governance) To consider the attached report.

9. CORPORATE PLAN KEY ACTION PLAN 2017/18 - QUARTER 1 PROGRESS  
(Pages 81 - 86)

(Director of Governance) To consider the attached report.

10. BOUNDARY COMMISSION FOR ENGLAND - 2018 REVIEW REVISED 
PROPOSALS FOR THE EASTERN REGION  

Recommendation:

1. To note that the Boundary Commission for England will be publishing the 
final proposals on 17 October 2017; and

2. That  if necessary, a further report be made to Members on the subject at 
the next meeting.

As part of the next stage of the 2018 Parliamentary Constituency Boundary Review 
the Boundary Commission for England (BCE) intend to publish their Revised 
proposals for new constituency boundaries on Tuesday 17 October 2017. They will 
consult on these proposals for eight weeks, until 11 December 2017. This will be the 
last consultation during this review of constituencies, and the last chance to contribute 
your views to the Commission on the best pattern of constituencies to recommend to 



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 3 October 2017

3

Parliament when they conclude their review next year, as they are statutorily obliged 
to do. 

As when BCE consulted on initial proposals last year, they rely heavily on local 
authorities to assist in publicising the consultation, so BCE can engage with as many 
citizens as possible. They will be working with the Local Government Association and 
preparing a partner pack full of resources. This is the last chance for people to have 
their say on their proposals. Unlike last year's consultation, BCE will not be hosting 
public hearings across the country - there is no provision to allow this in governing 
legislation. All the information people need to see the proposals and contribute to the 
review will be on the BCE website, at www.bce2018.org.uk from 17 October 2017.

11. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at its next meeting.

12. FUTURE MEETINGS  

To note the dates of future meetings of the Governance Select Committee.

05 December 2017;
06 February 2018; and
27 March 2018.

http://www.bce2018.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
NOTES OF A MEETING OF GOVERNANCE SELECT COMMITTEE 

HELD ON TUESDAY, 4 JULY 2017
IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING

AT 7.15  - 9.35 PM

Members 
Present:

N Avey (Chairman), G Chambers (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett (Vice 
Chairman of the Council), L Hughes, S Kane, H Kauffman, M McEwen, 
L Mead, B Rolfe, D Stallan (Chairman of the Council), B Surtees and 
D Wixley

Other members 
present:

J Philip, A Lion, M Sartin and G Waller

Apologies for 
Absence:

S Jones

Officers Present N Richardson (Assistant Director (Development Management)), J Leither 
(Democratic Services Officer), J Dixon (Principal Building Control 
Surveyor), S Hill (Assistant Director (Governance)) and V Loftis (Market 
Research Consultation Officer)

1. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02) 

There were no substitute members at the meeting.

2. NOTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the notes of the meeting of the Committee held on 4 April 2017 be agreed 
as a correct record, subject to the misspelling of Councillor D Wixley’s name 
being spelt Wixleyn and not Wixley in the heading ‘Members Present’.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest made pursuant to the Member’s Code of 
Conduct.

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORK PROGRAMME 

The Select Committee received a report from the Assistant Director of Governance 
(Development Management) regarding the Governance Select Committee’s Terms of 
Reference and Work Programme 2017/18. 

The Assistant Director advised that the Work Programme had been agreed by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and asked Members if they wished any other 
business to come to this Committee. The Committee had nothing further to add at 
this time but noted that items could be suggested at any time during the cycle of 
meetings over the coming year.

RESOLVED:

That the Terms of Reference and the Work Programme of the Select 
Committee for 2017/18 be noted.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

2

5. BUILDING CONTROL PRESENTATION 

The Building Control Manager, Jeff Dixon gave a presentation to Members regarding 
the Council’s Building Control Services and how this differed from Planning 
Development Control (see presentation slides attached).

What was Building Control and what does it apply to

 Building Control was a set of standards for the design, construction and 
alterations to buildings to ensure the health and safety of people in or about 
those buildings.

 The conservation of fuel and minimising the carbon footprint of the building 
throughout its lifetime.

 To promote and establish access for all people, regardless of disability.

 Building Control applies mainly to all new buildings, below was a list of some 
of the things this may cover:

o Extensions;
o Material alterations for example installation of heating or cooling 

system;
o Replacing a roof, windows or door replacement;
o Removal of loadbearing walls; and
o Rewiring or extending domestic electrical work.

The Building Regulations 2010

Over the years the Building Control regulations have changed and these are now 
governed by the Building Regulations of 2010 and Approved Documents. These 
Approved Documents cover every aspect of Building Control and go from A to R. 
Below are the examples of Health and Safety:

 Approved Document A Structure;
 Approved Document B Fire Safety; and
 Approved Document M Access to and use of buildings.

The Process

Once Building Control has been applied for there was a lot of pressure on the 
Building Control Surveyor to oversee the application and the many changes that 
could occur. The charges that applied were on a scale and took into consideration 
the size and complexity of the application. Consultations with the Fire Authority, 
Water Authority and Structural Engineers may also need to take place.

 Approval of Plans and details;
 Regime of site inspections;
 Providing guidance before and during the construction.

There were two methods of application:

1. Full Plans Applications

Page 6



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

3

For this application it was common practice to use the services of an architect or 
surveyor.

 Approval was obtained;
 Working drawings were generated;
 Structural engineering carried out; and
 Thermal calculations carried out.

2. Building Notice

 Typically small works;
 Simple projects;
 No need for detailed plans;
 No professional architect needed; and
 No approval of plans.

How to Apply

The application process was simple you could apply in person, by post, online or by 
telephone. Once your application had been received you could start work within 48 
hours and an inspection could be carried out the same day.

The Building Control Profession

In 1985 Building Control was deregulated and private practice was introduced. There 
were now approximately 100 practices across the country and many had regional 
branches, therefore competition was intense and forceful.

EFDC Operation and Performance

EFDC operated a ring-fenced trading account which met and exceeded its budget 
each year. Staff were recruited at Senior, Graduate and Under Graduate levels with a 
view to maintaining service delivery in the long term.

Councillor Chambers asked what powers did Building Control Officers have over a 
building that was a potential fire hazard.

Mr Dixon advised that Building Control Officers only had powers to enforce on new 
builds and had no powers over buildings that had already been erected. 

6. GOVERNANCE DIRECTORATE BUSINESS PLAN 2017/18 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee had requested that the relevant Portfolio 
Holders attend the first meeting of each Select Committee to present their Business 
Plans, which were developed on a Directorate basis. This would enable each 
Committee to undertake a more in-depth scrutiny role regarding the numerous 
services which made up each Select Committee.

The Business Plan covers a diverse range of services including Development 
Management, Governance, Legal Services, Audit and Corporate Fraud.

Councillor J Philip reminded Members that development of the Local Plan was in the 
remit of the Neighbourhoods Business Plan. Councillor Philip then introduced the 
Planning and Governance Business Plan.

Page 7



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

4

Development Management

To support measures to protect and enhance the green character of the district, 
ensuring all planning and building control applications were compliant with Local Plan 
policies. To support timely planning enforcement of protecting the unique character of 
the District.

To Implement effective change in Heritage Conservation as part of the Council’s 
statutory responsibility, to protect heritage assets across the district. All advice would 
be provided by the Council’s Conservation Team on works to listed buildings and 
applications for Listed Building consent.

Integrating change measures were being introduced into the Council’s workforce to 
adapt from manual paper based working to electronic paperless working. This would 
be achieved by reducing paper usage whereby all documents could be viewed and 
accessed electronically and to give effective support for mobile and flexible working.

The Government had introduced an increase in fees for planning applications by up 
to 20%. This extra income must be invested back into the service which would 
enable the Council to better meet its targets.

Governance

The Council were looking to improve communication standards with accessibility in 
terms of improved staff awareness, recognition and understanding of EFDC services 
and increased employee engagement.

The County Council and Parliamentary Elections held in May/June 2017 were 
successfully completed with no electoral petition.

The Council were looking at the possible implementation of the report management 
functions of the Modern.Gov committee management system. Streamlining the 
process for submitting reports with the aim of removing the need for report clearance 
meetings. Standardisation of processes for all reports.

The Council were looking to develop an on-line version of the Freedom of Information 
Publication Scheme which would allow the public better access to Freedom of 
Information data by means of a self-serve web page.  More FOI enquiries could be 
dealt with, without recourse of officer intervention.

Councillor A Lion introduced the element of his Business Plan which was relevant to 
his Portfolio.

Audit and Fraud

To successfully managing the shared services with Harlow, Broxbourne and Epping 
Forest Councils and deliver the Council’s audit plan for 2017/18. To check the 
processes are financially sound and supported by the Audit and Governance 
Committee, which was made up of 7 members, 5 were elected Councillors of Epping 
Forest District Council and two co-opted members of the public. The Audit and 
Governance Committee had been operating since 2015 and part of its job was to 
look at all elements of the Council.

Page 8



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

5

One of the main focuses of the Corporate Fraud Team was to assess the Right to 
Buy applications with a view to identifying any money laundering activity.

The Legal Services of the Council would continue to provide support to all 
directorates and the Council was investigating shared service opportunities.

Councillor G Waller introduced the element of his Business Plan which was relevant 
to his Portfolio.

Conservation

Conservation support was previously provided by Essex County Council under the 
terms of a Service Level Agreement which had now been terminated and brought in-
house. Councillor Waller stated that he thought the service now provided by this 
Council had significantly improved the previous arrangements.

The Conservation team have a significant workload and deal with 40-50 
consultations and pre-application submissions per month. The team are also dealing 
with listed building applications and conservation area character appraisals.

Trees

The Council deals with a large number of applications for works to protected trees. 
The Trees and Landscape team support this process and also encourage tree 
planting within the district.

Members expressed concern that if an urgent or emergency situation occurred when 
the offices were closed how they would be able to contact someone otherwise if they 
waited until the offices were open it could be too late and a protected tree could be 
destroyed.

Councillor Waller advised that one of the Trees and Landscape officers were always 
on call when the offices were close. 

7. CONSULTATION REGISTER 2016/17 AND 2017/18 

The Consultation Officer, Mrs V Loftis presented a report to the Committee which set 
out a list summarising the main consultation exercises carried out in 2016 to 2017 
and some exercises planned for 2017 to the end of March 2018.

This summary showed a wide range of consultations, which the Council undertook. 

Consultation Register

The Consultation Register was a list of the most recent exercises which were carried 
out on behalf of the Council or by the Council in the last financial year.

Some consultation was undertaken every year, such as the Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme which was a requirement of the legislation amending state benefits. 

Also the Travel Plan Survey which gauged the various methods of travelling to the 
workplace to encourage more sustainable travel amongst the work force.

Page 9



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

6

The Cost of Consultation

The Council undertook 8 statutory surveys and have another one planned for this 
year. The Council also carried out 10 discretionary surveys and planned a further 
three. Costs were being kept low again this year by using resources in-house and 
using online technology.

There were 2 surveys that made up the bulk of the costs involved in public 
engagement which totalled £117,288, the ‘Draft Plan Preferred Approach’ was 
carried out in October and made up the bulk of the cost mentioned in the report of 
£100,000. The Customer Satisfaction Survey with the Council telephone survey costs 
were approximately £15,000.

Overview

The report sets out to provide Members with a corporate overview. 

A great deal of smaller local consultation took place as a routine part of day to day 
business which was not in the report. Such consultation tended to be undertaken in-
house and at a cost of postage and officer time only, such as Housing Estate 
Maintenance issues. Estate maintenance surveys tend to be very small and targeted 
at small groups of tenants or residents. 

Judgement on whether or not to include consultation on the register should be 
relative to the impact and local sensitivity of the subject. For example:

If the changes being proposed are likely to be either:
 contentious,
 an expensive project;
 a possible cause for complaint;
 effect a lot of people;
 controversial; or
 a possible nuisance to residents,

these were included on the register, however small. All dates, costs, methods and 
sometimes titles may be estimated and subject to change over a period.

Transformation

A major consultation with regard to the Council’s ‘Transformation’ programme was to 
find out how staff would react to the coming changes within the organisation. The 
Change Readiness Survey results were analysed and discussed by the Leadership 
Team. The results have been published and could be found on the Council’s 
Intranet.

Community Involvement

Surveys currently running were:

 The Crucial Crew Survey for young people; and
 An exit Survey for both Waltham Abbey and Lowewood Museums.

Page 10



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

7

The work carried out on a Customer Satisfaction Survey of over 500 residents, their 
expectations and experiences of the Council’s customer service and their local area 
in the Spring. 

This was to get a baseline reading of opinion and may in future be carried out on an 
annual basis to enable benchmarking this data with other local authorities.

Another survey was planned around the Council’s Corporate Plan for the future years 
2018-2023.

Councillor Wixley asked about the Private Sector Landlord’s Survey and how many 
Landlords we have in the District and was this as a response rate.

The Consultation Officer replied that she wasn’t aware of how many Landlords there 
were in the District but she would find out and let Councillor Wixley know.

Councillor Avey asked about the Change of Management Survey and whether 
Members were able to access this through the internet.

The Consultation Officer stated that Members were able to access the Change of 
Management Survey and that she would provide the link to go into the minutes. 
Please see below:

http://www.efdc.info/intranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=191&func=d
ownload&id=3396&chk=079e856462f1b75aeaf33031c4841445&no_html=1

RESOLVED:

That the Consultation Register for 2017/18 setting out those issues on which 
public consultation was to be undertaken during the municipal year and those 
consultation exercises completed during 2016/2017 be noted.

8. CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2023 

The Assistant Director (Governance), S Hill advised the Select Committee that the 
Corporate Plan 2015-2020 was the authority’s current key strategic planning 
document. The Plan was based around the Council’s medium term priorities for that 
period. The Plan had been reviewed and updated with the input of Officers and 
Cabinet Members.

The new Corporate Plan will run from 2018 to 2023, and seeks to lay out the journey 
the Council will take to transform the organisation to be ‘Ready for the Future’. The 
plan seeks to link the key external drivers influencing Council services, with a set of 
corporate aims and objectives, grouped under three corporate ambitions.

The success of the new Corporate Plan will be assessed through the achievement of 
a set of benefits, focussed on what the Council achieves for customers. These 
benefits in turn are evidenced through a set of performance measures.

A Corporate Specification for each year (previously called the Key Action Plan) 
detailed how the Corporate Plan was being delivered through operational objectives, 
with these in turn linked to annual Directorate and Service business plans.

Page 11

http://www.efdc.info/intranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=191&func=download&id=3396&chk=079e856462f1b75aeaf33031c4841445&no_html=1
http://www.efdc.info/intranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=191&func=download&id=3396&chk=079e856462f1b75aeaf33031c4841445&no_html=1


Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

8

RESOLVED:

(1) That the Committee considered and provided comment on the 
Council’s proposed new Corporate Plan for 2018-2023;

(2) That the Committee considered and provided comment on the 
proposed Benefits and Performance Measures for 2018-2023; and

(3) That the Committee considered and provided comment on the 
proposed Corporate Specification for the first year of the plan, 2018-
2019. 

9. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2016/17 - QUARTER 4 (OUTTURN) 
PERFORMANCE 

The Select Committee received a report from the Assistant Director of Governance 
(Development Management) regarding the Key Performance Indicators 2016/17 – 
Quarter 4 (Outturn) Performance Report.

The Local Government Act 1999 required that the Council made arrangements to 
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions and services were 
exercised. 

As part of the duty to secure continuous improvement, a range of Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) relevant to the Council’s services and key objectives, were adopted 
each year by the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee. 
Performance against the KPIs was monitored on a quarterly basis by the 
Management Board and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to drive improvement 
in performance and ensure corrective action was taken where necessary.

All indicators – The overall position for all 37 KPIs at the end of the year was as 
follows:

(a) 28 (75%) indicators achieved target; 
(b) 9 (25%) indicators did not achieve target; although
(c) 3 (8 %) of these KPIs performed within its tolerated amber margin. 

Governance Select Committee indicators – Five of the Key Performance 
Indicators fall within the Governance Select Committee’s areas of responsibility. The 
overall position with regard to the achievement of target performance at the end of 
the year for these indicators, was as follows:

(a)  3 (60%) indicators achieved target;
(b) 2 (40% indicators did not achieve target; and 
(c) 0 (0%) indicators performed within its tolerated amber margin.  

The ‘amber’ performance status used in KPI reports identified indicators that had 
missed the agreed target for the quarter, but where performance was within an 
agreed tolerance or range (+/-). The KPI tolerances were agreed by Management 
Board when targets for the KPIs were set in February 2016.

The Select Committee was requested to review performance at the end of the year in 
relation to the KPIs for 2016/17 within its areas of responsibility.

Page 12



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

9

RESOLVED:

That the Key Performance Indicators 2016/17 – Quarter 4 (Outturn) 
Performance report be noted.

10. CORPORATE PLAN KEY ACTION 2016/17 - QUARTER 4 (OUTTURN) POSITION 

The Select Committee received a report from the Assistant Director of Governance 
(Development Management) regarding the Corporate Plan Key Action Plan 2016/17 
– Quarter 4 (Outturn) position.

The Corporate Plan was the Council’s key strategic planning document setting out its 
priorities over the five year period from 2015/16 to 2019/20. The priorities or 
Corporate Aims were supported by Key Objectives, which provided a clear statement 
of the Council’s overall intentions for these five years. 

The Key Objectives were delivered by an annual action plan, with each year building 
upon the progress against the achievement of the Key Objectives for previous years. 
The annual action plans contained a range of actions designed to achieve specific 
outcomes and were working documents and were therefore subject to change and 
development to ensure the actions remained relevant and appropriate and to identify 
opportunities to secure further progress or improvement.

Progress against the Key Action Plan was reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure 
the timely identification and implementation of appropriate further initiatives or 
corrective action where necessary. Quarter 4 (outturn) progress against the individual 
actions of the 2016/17 Key Action Plan, was as follows: 

There were 49 actions in the Key Action Plan 2016/17. At the end of the year:

(a) 33 (68%) of the individual deliverables or actions supporting the key 
objectives had been achieved;

(b) 9 (18%) of the deliverables are expected to achieve target in the next 6 
months.

(c) 7 (14%) of the deliverables or actions were not completed by year-end 
albeit significant progress has been made. Details of the progress made 
are set out in the comments against the individual deliverables or 
actions in the attached schedule.

Eight actions fell within the areas of responsibility of the Governance Select 
Committee. At the end of the year: 

(a) 7 (86%) of these actions have been achieved at year end;
(b) 1 (14%) of these actions are expected to achieve target in the next 6 

months; and  
(c) 0 (0%) of these actions are behind schedule.

RESOLVED:

That the Corporate Plan Key Action Plan 2016/17 – Quarter 4 (Outturn) 
Report be noted.

Page 13



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

10

11. JOINT MEETING OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT CHAIRMEN AND VICE-
CHAIRMEN - 20 APRIL 2017 

The Assistant Director (Governance), S Hill advised the Select Committee that the 
last joint meeting of the Development Management Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen 
was held on the 20 April 2017.

Planning Protocol

The new Planning Protocol had been drafted and would be considered by the 
Standards Committee and Constitution Working Group, as well as the Joint Meeting 
of the Development Management Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen. Representations 
had been made by Officers from the Planning Policy Team, which would be 
circulated in due course. The post Annual Council meeting training would be on the 
current Planning Protocol as this was still valid and would remain so for a while 
longer.

Area Plans Sub-Committees – Seating Arrangements

At their first meeting of the municipal year the three Area Plans Sub-Committees and 
the District Development Management Committee had each made a decision as to 
where they would like members of the public to sit at each meeting. All of the Area 
Committees apart from Area Plans Sub-Committee East had decided that speakers 
only would sit in the chamber and the general public would sit in the public gallery. 
Area Plans Sub-Committee East advised that they would like all speakers and 
general public to sit together in the chamber.

S Hill stated that the Council had a duty of care to the public, Members and Officers 
and there was a resource requirement to look at all procedures around planning 
committees. A scoping paper would come to all three committees before the end of 
the year.

Councillor Chambers suggested that a motion should go to the full Council. Mr Hill 
advised that Members should not rush into a decision before they had looked at the 
cost implications.

Councillor Waller stated that Area Plans Sub-Committee East had reservations about 
spending Council Resources and therefore had decided to sit all speakers and 
general public in the chamber.

Councillor Philip advised the Select Committee that he would be happy to take this 
away and get costs and bring it back to a future meeting of the Governance Select 
Committee.

Review of Planning Procedures

The proceedings of the Planning (Sub-)Committees held during the preceding six-
month period was evaluated and consideration was given as to whether the 
procedure, policy and organisation of the (Sub-)Committees required review.

An unusually large number of planning applications were expected to be received by 
the Council once the Local Plan had been agreed, which would put pressure on the 
Development Management Team and Members of Planning (Sub-)Committees. 
Those aspects of the Constitution which dealt with Planning matters would need to 

Page 14



Governance Select Committee Tuesday, 4 July 2017

11

be reviewed, including delegations, to ascertain if the current rules were still ‘fit for 
purpose’.

Members suggested that all large scale applications should go direct to the District 
Development Management Committee (DDMC), and not be heard at the Planning 
Sub-Committees. It was also suggested that the calling-in of planning applications by 
District Councillors could also be revised. N Richardson agreed that the Council 
could do this, although more meetings of DDMC would then be needed. There was 
an expectation from Officers that more planning applications would be received 
generally after the Local Plan had been agreed, not just large scale planning 
applications. S Hill advised the Group that the review would consider the best use of 
the time spent in determining applications at planning meetings.

N Richardson highlighted that there was a significant number of applications referred 
to a Committee meeting where the only objection to the application had been from 
the local Town/Parish Council, but then they did not attend the meeting to speak on 
the application and the application could have been dealt with under delegated 
authority by Officers. Members pointed out that if such applications were dealt with 
by Officers under delegated authority then Local Councillors would simply lobby 
District Councillors to call in applications that they objected to, in order to get them 
considered at a Planning Meeting. Members were reluctant to lose the automatic 
referral of planning applications to a meeting where the local Town/Parish Council 
had objected, and suggested that the Planning Officer could discuss the objections 
with the Local Council and possibly reject the referral. It was generally felt that the 
training of Local Councillors could be improved to enable more of them to attend and 
comment on applications on planning grounds at meetings. The Group were 
reassured that this issue would be included in the proposed review.

Review of Current and Future Training Needs

S Hill advised that although members were informed about scheduled training at the 
Planning Code of Practice training on 30 June 2017 only 5 members attended.

12. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

The Chairman would give general feedback to the forthcoming Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on this meeting’s activities.

13. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Committee noted the dates of future meetings as below:

03 October 2017;
05 December 2017;
06 February 2018; and
27 March 2018.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Building Control

EFDC

P
age 13

M
inute Item

 5

P
age 17



Jeff Dixon MRICS

Building Control Manager

• Born in Hartlepool 

NE England

• Educated at 

Newcastle University

P
age 14

P
age 18



Experience

• Site Engineer with Building & Civil Engineering 

Company for 2-3 years

• Moved to Chelmsford City Council 1983

Assistant Building Control Surveyor

• District Surveyor 1985

P
age 15

P
age 19



• Moved to Epping Forest DC in November 1985 …. 

• Remained with EFDC for 31 years moving through 

the ranks to Building Control Manager in 2013P
age 16

P
age 20



Team
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Building Control Manager 
(GBC01) Dixon J 

Trainee Building Control Surveyor 
(GBC10T) Newton S 

 

 

Senior Building Control Surveyor 
(GBC03) Myers S (21.6 hrs) 

 

Senior Building Control Surveyor 
 (GBC04) Hill B (14.4 hrs) 

 

 

Technical Officer (GAD04) Tolley Z 
 

Senior Building Control Surveyor   
(GBC06) Browne S 

 

Senior Building Control Surveyor 
(GBC05) P Smith 

 

 

Administrative Officer (GAD09) 
O’Connell D 

(18 hrs) 

 

Technical Officer (GAD05) Davis J 
 

 

Principal Building Control Surveyor 
(GBC02) Barnes S & Osborne K 

 

Trainee Building Control Surveyor 
(GBC09T) R Smith 

 

P
age 17

P
age 21



What is Building Control?

• It’s not Planning! No neighbour consultation! 

• This can be confusing – may need one or the 

other or both.

• Planning look at:

1. Height & size

2. Impact on neighbours amenity 

3. Location

4. Appearance - colour, materials etc

P
age 18

P
age 22



• Building Control is about how the structure is 

put together. From concept design to site 

inspections at foundations to roof covering 

and more…

1. Is it safe ?

2. Is it waterproof ?

3. Will it fall down ?

4. Etc. 

P
age 19

P
age 23



Statutory Requirement

Building Act 1984 

This is the statutory 

document that provides 

Central Government with 

the power to create 

Building Regulations

P
age 20

P
age 24



National minimal standards – not perfection

Statutory Local Authority Duty

Enforceable through the Courts

Applicable to all “Building Work”

This is in addition to Planning Requirements

P
age 21

P
age 25



Purpose of the Building Regulations

• Health and Safety of people in and around a 

building. It doesn’t just happen..!

• The conservation of fuel and minimising the 

carbon footprint of that building throughout 

its lifetime.

• To promote and establish access for all people  

regardless of disability.

P
age 22

P
age 26



What does it apply to? 

• All new buildings (with few exceptions):

1. Residential – Housing – Care Homes - Hotels 

2. Flats – including multi-storey 

3. Offices

4. Shops & Commercial

5. Hospitals

6. Assembly Buildings - Leisure Centres etc

7. Commercial, Storage & Other Non-residential

P
age 23

P
age 27



• Building Work

1. Extensions to any of the buildings above

2. Material alterations ie installation of heating or 

cooling systems

3. Re-roofing, window & door replacement

4. Removal of loadbearing walls etc

5. Rewiring or extending domestic electrical work

6. etc

P
age 24

P
age 28



How is this achieved?

The Building Regulations 1976

…my introduction…P
age 25

P
age 29



The Building Regulations 2010

Today these regulations have been superseded 

and developed into Regulations and 

accompanying Approved Documents P
age 26

P
age 30



Health and Safety in buildings is not by  

good luck

• Approved Document A  Structure

• Approved Document  B Fire Safety

• Approved Document  M   Access to and use of         

buildings

P
age 27

P
age 31



The Process

• Approval of Plans & Details +

• Regime of site inspections

• Providing guidance before and during 

construction

• Two Methods Of Application

1. Full Plans

2. Building Notice

P
age 28

P
age 32



• Charges Apply on a scale… considering size 

and complexity

• Consultations may apply with 

1. Fire Authority

2. Water Authority 

3. Structural Engineer etc

• Two weeks to review the scheme

P
age 29

P
age 33



1. Full Plans Applications

• Approval is obtained

• Working drawings & spec are generated

• Structural engineering carried out

• Thermal calculations carried out

Common to use the services of an Architect, 

Surveyor or similar

P
age 30

P
age 34



Alternative application method

2. Building Notice

• Typically Small Works

• Simple projects

• No need for detailed plans

• No professional architect needed

• Can be more risky

• No approval of plans

P
age 31

P
age 35



How to Apply

• In person

• Post

• On-line Direct

• On-line Planning Portal

• Telephone

Start work within 48hrs

Same day inspection possible.

P
age 32

P
age 36



The Building Control Profession

• Deregulated  

• Private practice was introduced in 1985

• NHBC was the first

• Now there are approx. 100 practices across 

the country.

• Many have regional branches.

• So competition is intense and forceful 

P
age 33

P
age 37



Local Authority Building Control

P
age 34

P
age 38



EFDC Operation and Performance

• Epping operates a ring-fenced trading account

• Meeting and Exceeding its budget every year.

• Recruited at Senior, Graduate and Under 

Graduate levels with a view to maintaining 

service delivery in the long term.

• Training & Development of team.

• Succession Planning.

• Growing the Business – Partnership Working 

P
age 35

P
age 39



Partnerships: Cross-border working

• Using the LABC Partnership Agreement we 

have raised the partnerships from 6 to 65

• I have directed the team to promote and 

provide a “Centre of Excellence” for Client’s 

• Architects, Party Wall Surveyors, Building 

Contractors, etc… 

• Nominated from our own confidence over 

years of working together. 

P
age 36

P
age 40



• Marketing the Business at every available 

opportunity.

• Communications being key…

• Providing a flexible service

• Allowing our partners to work together

• Weston Homes PLC have been partnered with 

Epping since Nov 2013

P
age 37

P
age 41



Weston Homes Projects

P
age 38

P
age 42



Current Position of EFDC

• Market share has levelled at 62%

• Numbers of applications continue to rise

P
age 39

P
age 43



Partnership Income

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/Current date

£6,274.01 £15,507.80 £40,588.03 £53,300.96 £5,967.47

P
age 40

P
age 44



Conclusion

• A team of highly qualified surveyors

• Training, Development & Succession Planning

• Recruitment & Retention 

• Complex Statutory function

• Running a trading account

• Centre of Excellence – Partnerships

• Extending cross-border working

P
age 41

P
age 45



Thank you for listening!

Any questions?

P
age 42

P
age 46



J. Leither (updated June 2017)

GOVERNANCE SELECT COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE 2017/18

Title:  Governance Select Committee 

Status:  Select Committee 

1. To undertake overview and scrutiny, utilising appropriate methods and 
techniques, of the services and functions of the Governance Directorate;

2. To develop a programme of work each year, informed by relevant service aims and 
member priorities, to ensure that the services and functions of the Governance 
Directorate are appropriate and responsive to the needs of residents, service users 
and others;

3. To consider any matter referred to the Select Committee by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, the Cabinet or a relevant Portfolio Holder, and to report and 
make recommendations directly to the Committee, the Cabinet or such Portfolio 
Holder as appropriate;

4. To consider the effect of Government actions or initiatives on the services and 
functions of the Governance Directorate and any implications for the Council’s 
residents, service users and others, and to respond to consultation activities as 
appropriate; 

5. To establish working groups as necessary to undertake any activity within these 
terms of reference;

6. To undertake pre-scrutiny through the review of specific proposals of the Council 
and its partner organisations or other local service providers, insofar as they relate 
to the services and functions of the Governance Directorate, to help develop 
appropriate policy;

7. To undertake performance monitoring in relation to the services and functions of the 
Governance Directorate, against adopted key performance indicators and identified 
areas of concern;

8. To identify any matters within the services and functions of the Governance 
Directorate that require in-depth scrutiny, for referral to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; and

9. To recommend the establishment of task and finish panels to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee as necessary, in order to undertake any activity within these 
terms of reference.

Chairman:  Councillor N Avey

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Governance Select Committee (Chairman – Councillor N Avey)

Work Programme 2017/18

Item Report Deadline/Priority Progress/Comments Programme of 
Meetings

(1) Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) 2016/17 - Outturn 04 July 2017 Governance indicators only - Completed

(2) Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) 2017/18 - Quarterly 
Performance Monitoring

Q1 – 03 October 2017
Q2 – 05 December 2017
Q3 – 06 February 2018

Governance indicators only.

(3) Development Management 
Chairmen and Vice-
Chairmen’s Meetings

04 July 2017

Feedback from meeting of the Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen of the Area Plans Sub-
Committees and the District Development 
Management Committee – minutes of last 
meeting attached – completed

(4) Building Control 04 July 2017
To be carried forward onto work programme for 
2017/18. Building Control Officer to give a 
presentation - Completed

(5) Equality Objectives 2016-
2020 / (2018-2023) - 6 
monthly reporting

Q1 - 03 October 2017

(6) Equality Objectives 2016-
2020 / (2018-2023) - 6 
monthly reporting

Q3 - 06 February 2018

04 July 2017
03 October 2107
05 December 2017
06 February 2018
27 March 2018

P
age 49



(7) Corporate Plan Key Action 
Plan 2015/16 - Outturn 04 July 2017 Governance actions only - Completed

(8) Review of Public 
Consultations 04 July 2017 Annual Review - Completed

(9) Governance Directorate 
Business Plan 2017/18 04 July 2017 Portfolio Holders attended Cllrs J Philip, A Lion 

and G. Waller - Completed

(10) Review of the Elections and 
General Election May and 
June 2017

03 October 2017 Review of the processes for the County and 
General elections.

(11) Corporate Plan Key Action 
Plan 2016/17- Quarterly 
reporting

Q1 – 03 October 2017 
Q2 – 05 December 2017
Q3 – 06 February 2018

Governance actions only.

(12) Review of the operation of 
the Council’s Petitions 
Scheme

TBA To be completed during the 2017/18 municipal 
year.

(13) Analysis of Compliments and 
Complaints information in 
identifying trends

06 February 2018
The Head of Customer Services has been invited 
to attend a future meeting. To identify trends, a 
period of time will need to elapse.

(14) Review of Planning 
Application Validation 
Checklist

TBA

(15) Annual Equality Information 
Report - 2016 03 October 2017 Combined with Item (5)

P
age 50



Report to Governance Select Committee

Date of meeting: 3 October 2017
 
Subject:  Equality Objectives Update

Officer contact for further information: Susan Lewis (Ext. 4508)

Committee Secretary:   Jackie Leither (Ext. 4756)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

The Governance Select Committee notes:

1. The update on our existing Equality Objectives 2016-2020 and proposed approach for 
setting new Equality Objectives for 2018-2023.

2. The new version Equality Impact Assessment form which replaces the previous Equality 
Analysis Report to test and analyse the nature and impact of what we do or are planning 
to do in the future.

Report:

1. Appendix 1 - Equality Objectives 2016-2020
2. Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Assessment
3. Appendix 3 - Equality Impact Assessment user guide

Executive Summary:

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the current action plan for the Equality 
Objectives 2016-20 and our approach to enable us to set some new Objectives for 2018-2023 
alongside the corporate plan for 2018-23.  The proposed actions are to be completed over the 
coming months and a new set of draft objectives presented back to Management Board for 
implementation in April 2018.

In addition, the new version Equality Impact Assessment form is attached for information.  
This will be used consistently going forward and replaces the previous Equality Analysis 
Report.

1. Equality Objectives 2016-20 (Appendix 1)

The Equalities Working Group (EWG) met in July 2017 to review the action plan for the 2016-
2020 objectives and an updated copy with current status against deliverables is attached for 
information.

Recommendations for new Equality Objectives 2018-23

Having conducted some research on other local authorities’ equality objectives it was felt that 
our current plan focusses very much inwards on EFDC operations.  We feel that our Equalities 
Objectives would benefit from a more holistic approach embracing our communities and 
focussing on the culture and behaviours we would like to improve throughout EFDC.

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



For this reason we are taking the following approach to what would be a timely introduction of 
new Equality Objectives for 2018-2023;

 Consult with all colleagues and ask for their feedback on what they feel our vision and 
objectives should be for Equality via a colleague survey

 Consult with a number of potentially vulnerable groups on our strategy and objectives to 
capture their feedback

 Develop a draft set of new Equality objectives to be taken back to Management Board for 
implementation from April 2018

2. Equality Impact Assessment (Appendix 2)

There has been some inconsistency in usage of the new Equality Impact Assessment form 
(appendix 2).  We have communicated to all Directorates that this form is to be attached to all 
reports to Cabinet going forward, no reports will be accepted without an Assessment form.  A 
user guide to aid completion has been provided and Members were given an overview and 
training on the form on 20th September (please see appendix 3)

Consultation undertaken:

Consultation with the Corporate Equality Working Group (CEWG) and within Directorates via 
representative to the working group.  Potential vulnerable groups are to be identified for 
consultation on the new objectives and colleagues will be consulted via a colleague survey.

Options considered and rejected:

No other options are appropriate in this respect.  Failure to monitor and review progress 
against the public sector equality duty and to consider actions to address identified issues 
could mean that opportunities for improvement are lost and respective decisions unsound.  
We could continue with the existing Equality Objectives plan however we would be missing 
the opportunity to enhance the content and adapt a best practised approach to Equality, 
particularly in light of the development of the new Corporate Plan 2018-2023.  Failure to gain 
approval on the use of the Impact Assessment form is likely to result in an inconsistent 
approach across the organisation.

Legal and Governance Implications: 

The adoption of a policy supports activities to comply with the Equality Act 2010; and the 
production and publishing of an annual report complies with the Equality Act 2010. 

Page 52



Equality objectives 2016-20 v4

Appendix 1. Equality Objectives 2016-2020 Action Plan 2016/17 Q4

E01 – To integrate the Council’s public sector equality duty into our partnership working
Equality Objective Actions Responsible 

Service(s)
Initiative 
Status

Initiative Progress

EO1.01.a – Include the Council’s equality 
requirements in business plan guidance

PIU Achieved Equality in business planning has been addressed 
through project 124.  Relevant equality information 
will be included in directorate intranet pages as 
business planning information.

Include the 
Council’s equality 
requirements in 
terms of reference 
or service level 
agreement as 
appropriate, of new 
partnerships

EO1.01.b – EFDC equality requirements 
included in governance arrangements of new 
partnerships

All 
Directorates

On target 
(March 
2020) -
Monitor 
ongoing

Action remains within target date of March 2020.  

1.

EO1.02.a Review governance documents of 
partnerships listed in the Corporate Community 
Partnerships Register: to establish inclusion of 
the Council’s public sector equality duty

All 
Directorates

Complete 
Monitor 
ongoing

2. Reflect the 
Council’s public 
sector equality duty 
in governance 
documentation 
relating to 
partnerships listed 
in the Corporate 
Partnerships 
Register

EO1.02.b For partnerships not already reflecting 
the public sector equality duty in governance

Identify the partnership governance 
arrangements review process and review 
opportunity;

For partnerships not already reflecting the public 
sector equality duty in governance 
arrangements; implement inclusion

All 
Directorates 
with 
partnership 
responsibility 

Complete
Ongoing

March 
2020

3. Include equality 
outcomes as a 
criterion in the 
community grant

EO1.03a Draft criteria produced and considered 
by O&S Task and Finish Group and Cabinet

EO1.03.b Include equality outcomes as a 
criterion in the community grant allocation 
process; criteria adopted and implemented

Communities

Communities

Complete

Complete

Equality Impact Assessment Report is now required 
for all community grant decisions, completed as 
part of the grant allocation decision making 
process.  The Grant Aid criteria ensures no unfair 
restrictions on membership/participation is 
acceptable in terms of groups applying for funding 
against all of the protected equality characteristics.  
Advice is given in any scenario that doesn’t meet 
the criteria

P
age 53



Equality objectives 2016-20 v4

4. Each directorate to 
be responsible for 
organising the 
programme of work 
experience for 
three young people 
each year 2016-
2020

EO1.04.b HR to work with Directorates to  
develop relevant programmes of work 
experience for three young people each year 
2016-2020

Human 
Resources

Complete HR continue to work with members of the public 
and managers to respond to work experience 
requests when received but the roll out of a specific 
achievable programme has not yet commenced.  
External factors may influence our target in this 
objective as the Apprenticeship Levy will mean an 
increased intake of Apprentices which will affect 
Managers capacity to also take on additional work 
experience requests

5. Work with partners 
to help older people 
to reduce the 
impacts of isolation 
as identified in the 
Impact of the 
Ageing population 
study

EO1.05.a Deliver a series of Older People’s 
engagement events

EO1.05b Work with partners to establish EF 
Dementia Action Alliance

EO1.05.c Pursue Dementia Friendly Services 
and Communities linked to above

EO1.05.d Work with NHS & ECC colleagues to 
deliver Early Intervention initiatives in EF

Communities

Communities

Communities

Communities

Complete 
but 
ongoing 
activities

Complete

Complete

Complete

Three Stay Well this winter events took place in 
Oct/Nov 2016 in Ongar, Chigwell and Loughton.  
These were attended by 170 older people.  
Organised by EFDC & West Essex Clinical 
Commissioning group they delivered key messages 
to help residents stay healthy, well and safe.  

Attendees also met over 20 local services including 
EFDC care & repair team, Alzheimers society, Age 
UK, VAEF, Community Nurses, Fire Service.  EF 
Dementia Action Alliance was launched in May 
2016.  The alliance has a page on the Dementia 
Action Alliance website with key actions.  The EF 
Dementia Action Alliance has an independent chair 
and is continuing to encourage organisations to 
sign up to the alliance.

To date over 80 people have taken part in 
Dementia Awareness Information sessions.  A 
simple guide on how to join the EF Dementia Action 
Alliance has been produced for organisations.  A 
leaflet has been produced to promote and raise 
awareness of the EF Dementia Action Alliance.

Resources – PSG – Quarter 3 2016

P
age 54



Equality objectives 2016-20 v4

E02 – To apply robust equality requirements in commissioning, procurement and contract management
Equality Objective Actions Responsible 

Service(s)
Initiative 
Status

Initiative Progress

1. EO2.01 Review procurement strategy to ensure it reflects EHRC 
‘Buying better outcomes’: mainstreaming equality considerations in 
procurement guidance requirements

Procurement 
Steering 
Group

Achieved 
March 
2017

The strategy is an over arching document 
which includes a requirement that the 
Equality Act 2010 is an influence on the 
Council’s approach to procurement.  The 
strategy has been reviewed and no 
amendments were found to be necessary.  
The application of the strategy is via the 
Procurement Toolkit (see 2.2).
PSG Resources Quarter 3 2016

2. EO2.02 Review procurement toolkit and guidance to ensure they 
reflect EHRC ‘Buying better outcomes’: Mainstreaming equality 
considerations in procurement’ guidance requirements for guidance 
documents

Procurement 
Steering 
Group

Achieved 
Sept 2016

The toolkit has been updated and cross 
referenced with EHRC guidance which sets 
out the requirements for integrating equality 
into procurement.  The toolkit includes the 
business case for procurement activities and 
the EHRC guidance is referred to specifically

3. EO2.03 At next review opportunity undertake a review of 
Procurement Rules to ensure they reflect EHRC ‘Buying better 
outcomes; Mainstreaming equality considerations in procurement’ 
guidance where appropriate

Procurement 
Steering 
Group

N/A at 
this stage

The next review will be April 2018 at which 
stage this task will be completed

4 EO2.04 Review Standing Orders user guidance to ensure they reflect 
EHRC ‘Buying better outcomes: Mainstreaming equality 
considerations in procurement’ guidance where appropriate

Procurement 
Steering 
Group

Speak to 
Bob/Shane

Achieved 
April 2016

Procurement Rules were created in April 
2016 to replace Contract Standing Orders.  
No user guide has been created to date.  
Should this change and a decision be made 
to develop a user guide than the 
requirements of the EHRC guidance will be 
reflected in it. However it is considered that 
the toolkit does actually contain all required 
information.

5 E02.05 Ensure requirements for procurement business cases and 
specifications include; Mandatory consideration; 

a. Relevance to equality considerations where equality is 
relevant; and applied in a proportionate way;

b. Added value potential
c. Reasonable adjustments requirements;
d. Positive action which can be delivered through the 

procurement;
e. Monitoring requirements, responsibilities and arrangements;
f. How requirements lots can facilitate equality

All 
Directorates

N/A at 
this stage

This is not mandatory at this stage but will be 
reviewed as such going forward

P
age 55



Equality objectives 2016-20 v4

6 E02.06 Ensure pre-qualification questionnaire suitability questions 
include, where relevant, demographic data and analysis of needs to 
help contractors to respond

All 
Directorates

April 2016 The council uses the Government’s standard 
Selection Questionnaire for all above OJEU 
value (currently £164,176) procurement 
exercises, part of which includes equality 
related issues and questions. Selection 
Questionnaires are not permitted for lower 
value procurements.

7 E02.07 Ensure arrangements for procurement activity advertising, 
includes a consideration of equality where relevant

All 
Directorates

April 2017 These actions had not been communicated to 
the Procurement team; they will be reviewed 
and a decision made as to relevance going 
forward

8 E02.08 Include equality clauses and requirements in tendering 
documents where relevant

All 
Directorates

April 2016 As above

9 E02.09 Ensure contract management and control process include 
monitoring of equality requirements

All 
Directorates

March 
2017

As above

10 E02.10 Ensure equality benefits derived through procurement are 
recorded

All 
Directorates

March 
2017

As above

11 E02.11 Ensure equality lessons learnt through procurement contracts 
are captured and applied to future contracts

All 
Directorates

March 
2017

As above 

E03 – Our employees have the knowledge, skills and confidence to deliver our plans
Equality Objective Actions Responsible 

Service(s)
Initiative 
Status

Initiative Progress

1. Provide relevant equality training for employees and managers 

E03.01a Training need identified and quantified

Human 
Resources

Complete A survey was carried out for EFDC by EELGA 
(East of England Local Government 
Association) to determine whether the EFDC 
training programme was inline with what other 
local authorities do.

Almost all of the authorities use a mixture of 
taught training courses and e learning which 
is in line with how EFDC currently administers 
its equalities training

The L&D Manager is satisfied that the EFDC 
Equality and Diversity training programme is 
relevant, fit for purpose and in line with the 
Corporate plan.

P
age 56



Equality objectives 2016-20 v4

2.

3.

E03.01.b Training provision sourced

E03.01.c Training included in the corporate training programme

Update Procurement e learning module to reflect equality 
requirements set out in procurement toolkit and guidance/standing 
orders/procurement strategy

E03.02.a Procurement e learning module reviewed and areas for 
development identified

E03.02.b E learning module developed as appropriate

E03.02.c Module included in Corporate Training programme

Review, evaluate and make improvements (where necessary) to the 
process for providing members with relevant equality information to 
support decision making (due regard record process)

E03.03a Review due regard record system and evaluate

E03.03.b Identify and develop improvements where necessary

E03.03.c Gain approval of CEWG, MB and appropriate members

E03.03.d Promote with staff via District Lines and member forums

E0.3.03.e Include in member training

Human 
Resources

Human 
Resources

Procurement
Human 
Resources

As above

As above

As above

PIU

As above

As above

As above

As above

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Complete

Achieved

Complete

On track
Oct 2017

On target 

HR have engaged CMS training as its 
Equality & Diversity training provider.  This 
course receives very good feedback and 
CMS are more than happy to change the 
content as required.

Included in next training cycle, courses are 
available for staff to attend

A group of Spending Control Officers will be 
asked to undertake the e-learning module 
and to also nominate relevant/appropriate 
members of their teams to complete the 
module

New Equality Impact Assessment Form ready 
for approval

Approved by CEWG
To MB for approval Sept 2017

To be completed 20th September 2017

P
age 57



Equality objectives 2016-20 v4

E04 – To improve and develop equality in our business activities
Equality Objective Actions Responsible 

Service(s)
Initiative 
Status

Initiative Progress

1.

2.

3.

4.

E04.01.a Integration of new equality impact assessment into project 
management guidance/tools

Map, develop and promote the potential to channel corporate equality 
expertise into corporate business processes (ie building control for 
access issues; 

E.04.02.a Map developed

Produce and promote a process for accessing comprehensive 
translation services

E04.03.a Process developed
E04.03.b Promote via Intranet and District Lines

Review the requirement for business advice provided in other 
languages; extend the provision where identified

E04.04.a Requirement reviewed
E04.04.b Develop provision where identified and appropriate

Transform-
ation

CEWG

CEWG

All 
directorates

PIU

CEWG

On track

No 
update

Complete

To be 
scoped 

To be 
scoped

To be 
scoped

The new equality impact assessment will be   
submitted along with reports to portfolio 
holders and other decision making groups 

Template developed and to be discussed at 
CEWG in January 2017.  Action remains with 
target date of March 2017.  Please refer to 
proposal for recommendations going forward

Please refer to proposal for recommendations 
going forward

P
age 58



MC 16/02/17 v2

Appendix 2. Equality Impact Assessment

1. Under s.149 of the Equality Act 2010, when making decisions, Epping District Council must have 
regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty, ie have due regard to:

 eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act, 

 advancing equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not, 

 fostering good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not, including tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.

2. The characteristics protected by the Equality Act are:

 age
 disability 
 gender
 gender reassignment
 marriage/civil partnership
 pregnancy/maternity
 race 
 religion/belief 
 sexual orientation.

3. In addition to the above protected characteristics you should consider the cross-cutting elements 
of the proposed policy, namely the social, economic and environmental impact (including rurality) 
as part of this assessment. These cross-cutting elements are not a characteristic protected by 
law but are regarded as good practice to include.

4. The Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) document should be used as a tool to test and analyse 
the nature and impact of either what we do or are planning to do in the future. It can be used 
flexibly for reviewing existing arrangements but in particular should enable identification where 
further consultation, engagement and data is required.

5. Use the questions in this document to record your findings. This should include the nature and 
extent of the impact on those likely to be affected by the proposed policy or change.   

6. Where this EqIA relates to a continuing project, it must be reviewed and updated at each stage of 
the decision. 

7. All Cabinet, Council, and Portfolio Holder reports must be accompanied by an EqIA. An 
EqIA should also be completed/reviewed at key stages of projects. 

8. To assist you in completing this report, please ensure you read the guidance notes in the Equality 
Analysis Toolkit and refer to the following Factsheets:

o Factsheet 1: Equality Profile of the Epping Forest District
o Factsheet 2: Sources of information about equality protected characteristics 
o Factsheet 3: Glossary of equality related terms
o Factsheet 4: Common misunderstandings about the Equality Duty
o Factsheet 5: Frequently asked questions
o Factsheet 6: Reporting equality analysis to a committee or other decision making body 

Page 59



MC 16/02/17 v2

Section 1: Identifying details

Your function, service area and team:      

If you are submitting this EqIA on behalf of another function, service area or team, specify the 
originating function, service area or team:      

Title of policy or decision:      

Officer completing the EqIA:   Tel:          Email:      

Date of completing the assessment:      

Section 2: Policy to be analysed
2.1 Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an existing policy, practice or 

project? 

2.2 Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of the policy (or decision):

What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie decommissioning or commissioning 
a service)?
     

2.3 Does or will the policy or decision affect:
 service users
 employees 
 the wider community or groups of people, particularly where there are areas 

of known inequalities?

Will the policy or decision influence how organisations operate?

2.4 Will the policy or decision involve substantial changes in resources?
     

2.5 Is this policy or decision associated with any of the Council’s other policies and 
how, if applicable, does the proposed policy support corporate outcomes?

Page 60



MC 16/02/17 v2

Section 3: Evidence/data about the user population and 
consultation1

As a minimum you must consider what is known about the population likely to be affected 
which will support your understanding of the impact of the policy, eg service uptake/usage, 
customer satisfaction surveys, staffing data, performance data, research information (national, 
regional and local data sources).

3.1 What does the information tell you about those groups identified?

3.2 Have you consulted or involved those groups that are likely to be affected by the 
policy or decision you want to implement? If so, what were their views and how have 
their views influenced your decision?

3.3 If you have not consulted or engaged with communities that are likely to be affected 
by the policy or decision, give details about when you intend to carry out consultation 
or provide reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:

Page 61



MC 16/02/17 v2

Section 4: Impact of policy or decision
Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you now 
know.

Description of impact Nature of impact 
Positive, neutral, adverse 
(explain why)

Extent of impact 
Low, medium, high 
(use L, M or H)

Age

Disability

Gender

Gender reassignment

Marriage/civil partnership

Pregnancy/maternity

Race

Religion/belief

Sexual orientation

Page 62



MC 16/02/17 v2

Section 5: Conclusion
Tick 

Yes/No as 
appropriate

No 5.1
Does the EqIA in 
Section 4 indicate that 
the policy or decision 
would have a medium 
or high adverse impact 
on one or more 
equality groups?

Yes 

If ‘YES’, use the action 
plan at Section 6 to describe 
the adverse impacts 
and what mitigating actions 
you could put in place.

Page 63



MC 16/02/17 v2

Section 6: Action plan to address and monitor adverse impacts

What are the potential 
adverse impacts?

What are the mitigating actions? Date they will be 
achieved.

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

Page 64



MC 16/02/17 v2

Section 7: Sign off 
I confirm that this initial analysis has been completed appropriately.
(A typed signature is sufficient.)

Signature of Head of Service:      Date:      

Signature of person completing the EqIA:      Date:      

Advice

Keep your director informed of all equality & diversity issues. We recommend that you forward 
a copy of every EqIA you undertake to the director responsible for the service area. Retain a 
copy of this EqIA for your records. If this EqIA relates to a continuing project, ensure this 
document is kept under review and updated, eg after a consultation has been undertaken.

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



SL 22/8/17 v1

Equality Impact Assessment Form – User Guide

Quite simply, the Equality Impact Assessment form will ensure we fully investigate and take 
into consideration all potential impacts on equality groups (those protected by the Equality Act) 
when planning a change.

Section 1 – Identifying details

This section is self-explanatory and describes the ownership of the assessment

Section 2 – Policy to be analysed

Section 2 identifies whether the change is a new policy/decision or whether we are making 
a change to something that already exists.  The owner must describe what they are doing, 
why they are doing it and the changes they expect to arise as a result.

Section 3 – Evidence/data about the user population and consultation

This section drills down into making sure the owner has really analysed the user population 
(those impacted by the change) and carried out sufficient research to have a very clear 
understanding of how receptive these groups will be to the proposed change.  Are they up 
for the change and feeling positive or do they have concerns which need addressing?  The 
owner needs to be able to identify how anyone will be disadvantaged or discriminated 
against based on the proposal.

Section 4 – Impact of policy or decision

Based on the findings from the research conducted in section 3 the owner should now be 
able to clearly assess any negative impacts and how specifically the change may impact any 
of the equality groups listed.

Section 5 – Conclusion

The owner must now make a decision as to whether there will be an adverse impact on one 
or more equality groups as a result of the proposed change.

Section 6 – Action plan to address and monitor adverse impacts

If there are adverse effects the actions to be taken to address these impacts must be 
described here along with a timeline for them to be achieved.

Section 7 – Sign off

Once the Equality Impact Assessment form has been fully completed it should be signed by 
the relevant Head of Service and a copy forwarded to the Director.  

All Cabinet, Council and Portfolio Holder reports must be accompanied by an Equality 
Impact Assessment.  The assessment should be completed and reviewed at key stages of 
projects.

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Governance Select 
Committee

Date of meeting: 3 October 2018
Subject: Local and Parliamentary Elections 2017 – Review

Officer Contact for further Information:

Glen Chipp (Returning Officer) (01992 564080)
Simon Hill (01992 56 4249)
Wendy MacLeod (01992 56 4023)

Democratic Services Officer: J Leither

Recommendations:

(1) To consider a review of the management of the following:

(i) County Council Elections - 5 May 2017; and
(ii) UK Parliamentary Election – 8 June 2017

(2) To recommend to the Returning Officer any changes to procedure for future elections.

Introduction

Summary

1. This report discusses the planning processes and implementation of the following elections 
held during 2017:

(a) The election of County Councillors on 4 May 2017
(b) The snap General Election held on 8 June 2017

2. The report outlines that, in the opinion of the Returning Officer, processes were very effective. 
The Elections have been reviewed by the Elections Planning Group and any issues identified 
have been included within this report. Candidates and Agents in the Election have also been 
asked to comment and the response to those is contained within the report.

Commentary 

3. This year has seen no respite in the amount of work carried out by electoral staff in running 
elections, with an unexpected snap General Election (UKPGE) called for 8 June with many 
overlapping timescales and actions. The upsurge in registration due to national campaigns has 
also been a factor in creating a big workload for all those who administer elections across the 
Country.

4. The UKPGE was announced by the Prime Minister on Tuesday 18 April, at a crucial stage of 
the timetable for the May polls. This unexpected news threw up the unprecedented challenge 
of making arrangements for the delivery of the UKPGE whilst continuing with the safe delivery 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



of the elections that were taking place on Thursday 4 May. With the UKPGE being held so 
soon after the May polls, there was an obvious overlap in campaigning, introducing confusion 
for the electorate. In addition, different franchises applied to the two sets of polls, which 
presented communication challenges with those electors. European Union citizens registered 
as electors were entitled to participate in the May polls but were then not entitled to vote at the 
UKPGE five weeks later.

5. The Returning Officer and a team of officers met regularly since the autumn of 2016 in order to 
plan effectively for the May Election and to ensure that the processes were undertaken at the 
appropriate times. A Project Plan and a Risk Register for the election were prepared, reviewed 
and updated on a regular basis. 

6. At Epping Forest, Elections are the successful collaboration of a number of teams that cross 
support each other during the peak in workload in the run up to elections. It is apparent from 
our connections with electoral colleagues across the country, that this is far from usual 
practice. The Association of Electoral Administrators, in its most recent annual report has 
flagged up the concern it has for the wellbeing of many of its members from the workload 
created by running elections. This system of support has worked here very well this year 
across both elections and is a credit to the many hundreds of staff involved. The staff ranged 
from those from Governance Directorate, right across the Council to Facilities Management 
who get a specific mention for coming to the rescue when an officer snapped the key to the 
secure ballot store off in the lock and helped us gain access again.

7. As background, the elections team have also organised by-elections in Chigwell, Ongar and 
Epping this year and at the time of writing this report, a further by-election is planned for later 
in October 2017 in Lower Sheering ward.

8. At 1 December 2016, on the publication of the electoral register, the District register held 
102,472 electors. This was some 1341 electors down on the peak of 103,813 electors who 
were on the register at the time of the EU referendum.  Again, at the annual canvass stage in 
autumn 2016, we achieved one of the highest response rates in the Country.

Publicity

9. There was, again this year, a national campaign for the registration deadline which publicised 
the opportunity of registering online. Electoral Commission again made a mistake in their 
publicity by encouraging people to beat the deadline for registration for the General Election 
right in the middle of the last stages of May election creating a peak in workload in answering 
calls and duplicate online registration attempts. The Electoral Commission publicity campaign 
made many voters think that they had to register again to be able to vote in the referendum. 
Officers contacted the Electoral Commission and made this point and subsequent publicity 
seemed to be altered.

10. The Public Relations Section undertook a sustained publicity campaign through registration 
deadlines and during the run-up to the election days encouraging registration and voting. 

Pre-election Period

11. As this year’s May elections were for County Councillors only, no local candidates evening 
was held, although one was held by the County Council. Officers seek members’ views about 
the timing and desirability of an evening in 2017. It could perhaps be scheduled for earlier in 
the candidate process?

12. All of the county election papers for May and for the UKPGE in June were printed by the 
Council’s Reprographics Section which again provided an excellent service bearing in mind 

Page 70



the tight timescale for printing. All books were hand checked. Division/Constituency names 
and ballot numbers were printed on the book cover so that PO’s could easily check them when 
issuing, this worked well and no errors in issuing occurred.

13. In the run up to the general election, the Returning Officer had good assistance from the 
Essex Police Service. Attacks in central London in the weeks before the election meant that 
additional security measures were drawn up and put in place for polling stations and the count 
centre. There was a very visible presence by the police in June and the Returning Officer 
records his thanks to the Divisional Commander Chief Inspector Basford and local liaison PS 
Lisa Cooke for their help in maintaining security of the election process.

Postal voting

14. Postal voting continues to grow in popularity:

 9,724 postal packs were sent out for May on 29 April and this was completed within 3 
hours. 5300 packs were returned and counted.

 8,305 postal packs were sent out on 22 May 2017 for the UKPGE including 192 
overseas electors by airmail. This was completed in a little over two hours with no 
issues. 

 There were a low number of ballots rejected at scanning stage but there were a 
number where the voter had failed to enter their date of birth correctly (May – mostly 
by entering the date of completion of the form) and rather than evidence of any 
fraudulent activity. Some adjustments to the wording on the form may improve this 
voter error. A total of 123 postal applications were rejected in June.

 There was a surge in applications for postal vote applications in the run up to the 
deadline before the UKPGE, this is thought to be due to the timing of the election, 
during a holiday period.

 Despite assurances that a full postal sweep had been completed on the evening of 8 
June and three packets being returned by Royal Mail at the count, 45 further late 
packets arrived at the Council on the Friday and Monday after the election.

Staffing

15. The levels of staffing for polling stations, verification and counts were adequate. However, 
staffing for June was more problematic as it is generally a staff holiday period. The 
government will not pay for staff to be kept on standby for UKPGE. Following a review of the 
likely risk to processes, the decision was taken by the Returning Officer to employ and pay for 
the staff as two staff had dropped out with injuries very close to the May election.

16. Officers from Democratic Services and other sections provided much needed to support to 
Electoral Services Staff by helping with enquiries about voting and registration. 

17. Assumptions made about the level of staff required for the issue and opening of postal votes 
proved correct as these procedures were all completed in good time. Directors were helpful in 
making officers available for all of the processes. Staff attended effective training sessions for 
each stage of the process in accordance with the project plan.

Polling Stations

18. At both elections, all polling stations opened on time and operated all day without problem and 
procedures planned for queues at close of poll were not required to be invoked on either date.

19. There are a number of changes to Polling Stations:

Page 71



 The new Polling Station at the Cottage Loaf Public House, replacing the Allotment 
Building in Willingale Road proved to work well. 

 As Loughton Town Council Offices, Buckingham Court were moving to Loughton 
Library shortly the decision was taken to relocate voters to the existing Grosvenor 
Hall station with no issues.

 The Head teacher at Willingale School could not accommodate the polling station in 
June. It was relocated to Barrington Close. This location was adequate but parking 
was restricted in this location.

 Due to a pre-planned building programme at White Bridge School, voters were 
redirected to St Michaels Hall in Roding Road with no issues. Signage was displayed 
at the school and the school assisted in alerting parents through their parent mail 
system.

20. No further observations regarding polling stations were received during post-election 
consultations.

Polling day issues

21. All the Districts Polling stations were operational for both the May and the June events. In 
May, issues were reported by local residents trying to access the polling station in Lambourne 
due to road resurfacing works. Officers contacted the County Returning Officer and the 
roadworks were quickly suspended for the day.

22. An alert Presiding Officer in Loughton made a report to the Elections Office of alleged 
personation (voting as another). This was reported to the police after the election and staff 
interviewed. As a direct result a man from Loughton received a conditional caution for the 
offence including a letter of apology to the Council. 

23. The Elections Office was busy on both days, especially in June, it was apparent that many of 
those calling about voting either had never voted, didn’t know where to vote or how the 
process worked. 

24. The opportunity was taken this year to purchase some new signs and also some dual use 
polling screens. These screens have booth shelves at two heights, one suitable for 
wheelchair/seated users. These worked well and officers are looking at replacing stock of 
older polling booths over time as resources permit.

25. One complaint was received in May from a member of the public who had experienced delays 
in an Epping station which had stemmed from the mismarking of the register. This was 
resolved by the Deputy Returning Officer and a learning point was delivered at the staff 
briefing session in June and did not re-occur. Three complaints were recorded in June: one 
from a German national who was not sent a postal vote (EU nationals cannot vote at UKPGE), 
one related to a teller speaking to voters on the way into the station and one from a postal 
voter wishing to retract their vote (having returned it) indicated that they wished to vote 
differently, nationally.

Verification and Counts

26. Verification and counting of County Council ballot papers in May and the UKPGE count in 
June took place at Debden Park High School. The school, on both occasions, were particularly 
helpful to staff. This larger hall was required for these elections to enable a greater number of 
Count staff to be employed. It is the view of officers that where a single type election is 
concerned that this location is currently the best option. Again this year, officers hired-in PA 
equipment as announcements had been previously identified as an issue for those attending.

Page 72



27. In May and June counting started as soon as the polling finished with postal votes. The 
process went smoothly using a ‘mini count’ system on both occasions. For the May County 
Council elections, 14 teams across 7 Divisions counted in pairs with a senior count staff 
member being responsible for collating a result for the division. For the UKPGE Officers had, 
by analysis, attempted to balance the likely number of votes on each table and this worked 
well in practice with the ten mini-count teams finishing well before the previous GE counts, 
albeit that on the previous occasion in 2015, it had been a combined election.

28. This year, on both dates, a bespoke spreadsheet was again used effectively to simplify 
procedures at the Count. Officers will continue to develop electronic processes for the count.

29. The Council’s Public Relations and Marketing Officer supported by the Website Officer 
ensured that appropriate publicity was made available at all stages with links to the Council’s 
website. Social media was also used to spread the message. The Council provided effective 
media facilities at the Count.

Post-Election Consultations/Comments

30. Every Agent has been written to asking for comments in relation to the running of both 
Elections. Members have also been asked to comment via the Bulletin. By the date of writing 
this report only the following comments have been received:

Wendy, 

Positives:  I was a novice parliamentary agent and found our meeting and communication 
helpful.  The refreshments on the evening itself were good.
Negatives: not enough seating in the evening, as none of us wanted to be standing the whole 
time watching the count,

Angela Ayre

Dear Wendy,
As agent to four candidates (May) I thought that the count was very efficiently organized.  The 
lay-out of the room made the proceedings easy to follow

Peter Sinfield

Future Elections and Lessons Learned

31. It is the opinion of the Returning Officer and his staff that there were no material issues arising 
at the 2017 elections. All practices were completed successfully

32. In May 2018 there are solely District elections. Lessons learnt will be fed back into the process 
for next year which begins shortly. 

33. Members of the Committee are asked to provide feedback to the Returning Officer for future 
elections.

Boundary Commission for England - 2018 Review revised proposals for the Eastern Region

34. As part of the next stage of the 2018 Parliamentary Constituency Boundary Review the 
Boundary Commission for England (BCE) intend to publish their Revised proposals for new 
constituency boundaries on Tuesday 17 October 2017. They will consult on these proposals 
for eight weeks, until 11 December 2017. This will be the last consultation during this review of 
constituencies, and the last chance to contribute views to the Commission on the best pattern 

Page 73



of constituencies to recommend to Parliament when they conclude their review next year, as 
they are statutorily obliged to do. 

35. As when BCE consulted on initial proposals last year, they rely heavily on local authorities to 
assist in publicising the consultation, so BCE can engage with as many citizens as possible. 
They will be working with the Local Government Association and preparing a partner pack full 
of resources. This is the last chance for people to have their say on their proposals. Unlike last 
year's consultation, BCE will not be hosting public hearings across the country - there is no 
provision to allow this in governing legislation. 

36. The next meeting of the Select Committee is on 3 October 2017 which in the consultation 
window.  If there are any significant changes proposed for the district a further report would be 
made to that meeting.

37. All the information people need to see the proposals and contribute to the review will be on the 
BCE website, at www.bce2018.org.uk, from 17 October 2017.

Page 74



Report to: Governance Select 
Committee  

Date of meeting: 3 October 2017

Portfolio:  Planning and Governance (Councillor J Philip)

Subject:  Key Performance Indicators 2017/18 - Quarter 1 Performance

Officer contact for further information:  Monika Chwiedz (01992 562076)

Democratic Services Officer:  Jackie Leither (01992 564756)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That the Select Committee reviews Q1 performance in relation to the key 
performance indicators within its areas of responsibility.

Executive Summary:

The Local Government Act 1999 requires that the Council make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions and services are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

As part of the duty to secure continuous improvement, a range of Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI) relevant to the Council’s services and key objectives, are adopted each year 
by the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee. Performance against the 
KPIs is monitored on a quarterly basis by Management Board and overview and scrutiny to 
drive improvement in performance and ensure corrective action is taken where necessary. 

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

The KPIs provide an opportunity for the Council to focus attention on how specific areas for 
improvement will be addressed, and how opportunities will be exploited and better outcomes 
delivered. It is important that relevant performance management processes are in place to 
review and monitor performance against the key performance indicators to ensure their 
continued achievability and relevance, and to identify proposals for appropriate corrective 
action in areas of slippage or under performance.

Other Options for Action:

No other options are appropriate in this respect. Failure to monitor and review KPI 
performance and to consider corrective action where necessary could have negative 
implications for judgements made about the Council’s progress, and might mean that 
opportunities for improvement are lost. 

Report:
1. A range of thirty-two (32) Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2017/18 was adopted 

by the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee in March 2017. The 
KPIs are important to the improvement of the Council’s services and the achievement 

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



of its key objectives, and comprise a combination of some former statutory indicators 
and locally determined performance measures. The aim of the KPIs is to direct 
improvement effort towards services and the national priorities and local challenges 
arising from the social, economic and environmental context of the district, that are the 
focus of the key objectives. 

2. Progress in respect of each of the KPIs is reviewed by the relevant Portfolio Holder, 
Management Board, and overview and scrutiny at the conclusion of each quarter. This 
report provides an overview of all KPIs and includes in detail those indicators which fall 
within the areas of responsibility of the Governance Select Committee

3. A headline end of Q1 performance summary in respect of the KPIs falling within the 
Governance Select Committee’s areas of responsibility for 2017/18, together with a 
detailed performance report for each of these indicators, is attached at Appendix 1 to 
this report. 

Key Performance Indicators 2017/18 - Quarter 1 Performance

4. The overall position for all thirty-two (32) KPIs at the end of the Quarter 1, was as 
follows:

(a) 27 (84%) indicators achieved first quarter target; 
(b) 5 (16%) indicators did not achieve first quarter target, although 1 (3%) of KPIs 

performed within the agreed tolerance for the indicator; and,

5. Governance Select Committee indicators – Five (5) of the Key Performance 
Indicators fall within the Governance Select Committee’s areas of responsibility. The 
overall position with regard to the achievement of target performance at Q1 for these 
five (5) indicators, was as follows:

(a)    5 (100%) indicators achieved target;
(b)    0  (0%) indicators did not achieve target, however
(c)    0  (0%) of these KPI’s performed within the agreed tolerance for the indicator
(d)    5  (100%) of indicators are currently anticipated to achieve year-end target.

6. The ‘amber’ performance status used in the KPI report identifies indicators that have 
missed the agreed target for the quarter, but where performance is within an agreed 
tolerance or range. The KPI tolerances were agreed by Management Board when 
targets for the KPIs were set in March 2017.

7. The Select Committee is requested to review Q1 performance for the KPIs within its 
areas of responsibility. The full set of KPIs was also considered by Management Board 
on 16 August 2017 and the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee 
on 14 September 2017.

Resource Implications: none for this report 
Legal and Governance Implications: none for this report; however performance 
management of key activities is important to the achievement of value for money. 
Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications: none for this report 
Consultation Undertaken: Relevant Select Committees and the Finance and Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee.
Background Papers:  KPI submissions held by the Performance Improvement Unit. 
Impact Assessments:
Risk Management: none for this report
Equality: none for this report. 

Page 76



         Key Performance Indicators 2017/18 – Quarter 1 Performance Report      Appendix 1 
 

 

Governance Quarterly Indicators 
Q1 2017/18 Q2 2017/18 Q3 2017/18 Q4 2017/18 Is year-end 

target likely to 
be achieved?  Target Value Status Target Value Status Target Value Status Target Value Status 

GOV004 

What percentage of 
major planning 
applications were 
processed within 13 
weeks or extension of 
time date? 

90% 100%  90%   90%   90%   

Yes 

GOV005 

What percentage of 
minor planning 
applications were 
processed within 8 
weeks or extnsion of 
time date? 

90% 95.73%  90%   90%   90%   

Yes 

GOV006 

What percentage of 
other planning 
applications were 
processed within 8 
weeks or extension of 
time date? 

94% 96.37%  94%   94%   94%   

Yes 

GOV007 

What percentage of 
planning applications 
recommended by 
planning officers for 
refusal were overturned 
and granted permission 
following an appeal ? 

20% 11.76%  20%   20%   20%   

Yes 

GOV008 

What percentage of 
planning applications, 
refused by Council 
Members against the 
recommendation of the 
planning officers, were 
granted permission to 
appeal? 

50% 42.86%  50%   50%   50%    Yes 

P
age 77



      Appendix 1 

2 

Key Performance Indicators 2017/18 Quarter 1 Performance  
Report Author: Monika Chwiedz (Performance Improvement Officer)  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 
 

 

GOV004 

What percentage of major planning applications were processed within 13 weeks 

or extension of time date? 

This indicator ensures that local planning authorities determine major planning applications in a timely manner (within 

thirteen weeks). 

            

 

 

Comment on current performance: Major type applications represent only a small number of the overall number of 

planning applications received, but they are more complex and generally are reported to planning committees, so 

deadlines for decisions are tight. Because of this, the performance can be volatile, but with all 8 decided in time, the 

target has been achieved.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reflecting on our performance: 

There are 32 KPIs for this year 

27 (84%) achieved target and 5 (16%) missed target, however of those missing target 1(3%) 

performed within their amber tolerance. 
Five (5) of the Key Performance Indicators fall within the Governance Directorate. 

Page 78



      Appendix 1 

3 

 

GOV005 

What percentage of minor planning applications were processed within 8 weeks or 

extnsion of time date? 

This indicator ensures that local planning authorities determine ‘minor’ planning applications in a timely manner 

(within eight weeks). 

            

 

 

 

Comment on current performance:  This covers planning applications that include 1 to 9 dwellings/ pitches per 

application as well as offices, light industry, general industry, storage, warehousing or retail floorspace under 

10,000sq m or 1 hectare and other minor developments. 112 out of 117 applications were made in time.  

 
 

 

GOV006 

What percentage of other planning applications were processed within 8 weeks or 

extension of time date? 

This indicator ensures that local planning authorities determine 'other' planning applications in a timely manner 

(within eight weeks). 

            

 

 

Comment on current performance:) GOV006 includes the highest subject type applications received (householder 

extensions) and 345 out of 358 applications were decided in time in this category, which meets the target.   

 

 
 

Page 79



      Appendix 1 

4 

 

GOV007 

What percentage of planning applications recommended by planning officers for 

refusal were overturned and granted permission following an appeal ? 

This indicator is expressed as a percentage of the no. of appeals determined and seeks to assess the levels of 

applications that may be refused in order to meet development control performance targets. It measures the 

performance of only Officer Recommendations for refusal of planning permission. 

            

 

 

 

Comment on current performance:) Of the 17 appeal decisions resulting from officer recommendations to refuse 

planning permission, 2 were allowed on appeal, both of which were gypsy and traveller applications.  

 
 

 

GOV008 

What percentage of planning applications, refused by Council Members against the 

recommendation of the planning officers, were granted permission to appeal? 

This indicator is expressed as a percentage of the no. of appeals determined and seeks to assess the levels of 

applications that may be refused in order to meet development control performance targets. It measures the 

performance of only Officer Recommendations for grant of planning permission, overturned by Members. 

            

 

 

Comment on current performance:  Members decisions to refuse planning permission by reversing officer 

recommendations on planning applications were supported on appeal in 4 out of 7 cases, achieving the target at this 

stage.  

  

Page 80



Report to: Governance Select 
Committee   

Date of meeting: 3 October 2017

Portfolio:  Leader (Councillor C Whitbread)

Subject:  Corporate Plan Key Action Plan 2017/18 – Quarter 1 progress

Officer contact for further information:  Monika Chwiedz (01992 562076)

Democratic Services Officer:  Jackie Leither (01992 564756)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

(1) That the Committee review the first quarter (Q1) progress of the Corporate Plan Key 
Action Plan for 2017/18 in relation to its areas of responsibility; and

(2) That the Committee identifies any actions arising from the Corporate Plan Key Action 
Plan for 2017/18 Q1 within its areas of responsibility, which require in-depth scrutiny 
or further report on current progress.

Executive Summary:

The Corporate Plan is the Council’s key strategic planning document, setting out its priorities 
over the five-year period from 2015/16 to 2019/20. The priorities or Corporate Aims are 
supported by Key Objectives, which provide a clear statement of the Council’s overall 
intentions for these five years. 

The Key Objectives are delivered by an annual action plan, with each year building upon the 
progress against the achievement of the Key Objectives for previous years. The annual 
action plans contain a range of actions designed to achieve specific outcomes and are 
working documents are therefore subject to change and development to ensure the actions 
remain relevant and appropriate, and to identify opportunities to secure further progress or 
improvement.

The Corporate Plan Key Action Plan for 2017/18 was adopted by Council at its meeting on 27 
September 2016. Progress in relation to all actions and deliverables is reviewed by the 
Cabinet, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and the appropriate Select Committee, on a 
quarterly basis. 

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

It is important that relevant performance management processes are in place to review 
progress against the key objectives, to ensure their continued achievability and relevance, 
and to identify proposals for appropriate corrective action in areas of slippage or
under-performance. 

Some actions have cross directorate responsibility. Where this is the case the most 
appropriate Select Committee is requested to consider the action. This report presents 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



progress against the Key Action Plan for 2017/18 for actions most appropriately considered 
by the Governance Select Committee. 

Other Options for Action:

Actions with cross directorate responsibility could be considered by an alternative Select 
Committee, or not considered by the Select Committees.

Report:
1. The Corporate Plan 2015-2020 is the Council’s highest level strategic document. It sets 

the strategic direction for the authority for the five year lifetime of the Plan. It focuses on 
a number of key areas that the Council needs to focus on during that time and helps to 
prioritise resources to provide quality services and value for money. These key areas 
are known as the Corporate Aims and are supported by a set of Key Objectives which 
represent the Council’s high-level initiatives and over-arching goals to achieve the 
Corporate Aims. The Key Objectives are in turn, delivered via an annual Key Action 
Plan. 

2. The Key Action Plan 2017/18 is populated with actions or deliverables designed to 
secure progress against each of the Key Objectives during 2017/18. During the 
subsequent years in the lifetime of the Key Objectives, annual action plans will be 
developed which build on progress achieved during preceding years. 

3. The annual action plans are working documents are subject to change and 
development to ensure that the actions remain relevant and appropriate, and to identify 
opportunities to secure further progress or improvement. The Leader of Council, in 
consultation with the Chief Executive, is authorised to agree any further changes to Key 
Action Plans, following their approval by the Council.

4. Progress against the Key Action Plan is reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure the 
timely identification and implementation of appropriate further initiatives or corrective 
action where necessary. Quarter 1 progress against the individual actions of the 
2017/18 Key Action Plan, is as below: In reporting progress, the following ‘status’ 
indicators have been applied to the to individual actions:

Achieved (Green) - specific deliverables or actions have been completed or achieved 
in accordance with in-year targets;
On-Target (Green) - specific deliverables or actions will be completed or achieved in 
accordance with in-year targets;
Under Control (Amber) - specific deliverables or actions have not been completed or 
achieved in accordance with in-year targets, but completion/achievement will be 
secured by a revised target date (specified) or by year-end;
Behind Schedule (Red) - specific deliverables or actions have not been completed or 
achieved in accordance with in-year targets and completion/achievement may not be 
secured by year-end; and
Pending (Grey) - specific deliverables or actions cannot currently be fully completed or 
achieved, as they rely on the prior completion of other actions or are dependent on 
external factors outside the Council’s control.

5. There are 50 actions in total for which progress updates for Q1 are as follows:

 Achieved or On-Target: 46  (92%)
 Under Control: 0    (0%) 
 Behind Schedule: 3    (4%)  
 Pending: 1    (4%) 

Total 50  (100%)  

Page 82



8 actions fall within the areas of responsibility of the Governance Select Committee. At 
the end of Q1: 

 8  (100%) of these actions have been ‘Achieved’ or are ‘On-Target’
 0  (0%) of these actions are ‘Under Control’
 0  (0%) of these actions are ‘Behind Schedule’
 0  (0%) of these actions are ‘Pending’

6. The Committee is requested to review the Q1 progress against Key Action Plan for 
2017/18 as set out in Appendix 1 of this report, and identify any actions that require 
more in-depth scrutiny or further progress reports. 

7. This report was also considered by the Cabinet on 12 October 2017 and will be 
considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 31st October 2017

Resource Implications: None for this report. 

Legal and Governance Implications: None for this report. Performance monitoring 
contributes to the delivery of value for money. 

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications: None for this report.
 
Consultation Undertaken: The performance information set out in this report has been 
submitted by each responsible service director. 

Background Papers: Relevant documentation is held by responsible service directors.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management: None for this report. 

Equality: None for this report.

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Plan: 2015-2020  KEY ACTION PLAN 2017/2018 Q1       Appendix 1 

MC 12/09/2017 for GSC 

 

Aim 1. To ensure that the Council has appropriate resources, on an ongoing basis, to fund its statutory duties and appropriate discretionary 
services whilst continuing to keep Council Tax low 
 
Objective 1.a. To ensure that the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) plans to meet the Council’s financial and service requirements 
for any forward five year period, whilst minimising any reliance on Government funding 

 
 

Action Lead Directorate Target Date . Status Progress notes 

3. Deliver savings and generate income 
identified for 2017/18 as approved by the 
Cabinet 

Management 
Board 

31-Mar-2018  On Target Q1 (2017/18) Langston Road will open this quarter.  Savings initiative on track. 

4. Prepare to deliver savings and generate 
income for 2018/19 within the Medium-
Term Financial Strategy 

Management 
Board 

31-Mar-2018  On Target Q1 - Not yet due, will be addressed in budget process for 2018/19 

5. Develop additional business cases, 
including the use of the ‘Invest to Save’ 
Fund, to address the need for net savings 
and income generation in subsequent years 

Management 
Board 

30-Sep-2017  On Target Q1 - Not yet due. 

 
 
 
Objective 1.c. To explore appropriate opportunities to make savings and increase income through the shared delivery of services with other 
organisations, where such arrangements would provide improved and/or more cost effective outcomes 

 
 

Action Lead Directorate Target Date . Status Progress notes 

3. Evaluate the potential to expand the 
provision of legal services provided to other 
authorities, to generate income 

Governance 31-Dec-2017  On Target 
Q1 - Retained the Lexcel accreditation to assist the marketing of the legal service. 
Networked through attendance at various special interest groups within the public 
law partnership.  

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

P
age 85



Corporate Plan: 2015-2020  KEY ACTION PLAN 2017/2018 Q1       Appendix 1 

MC 12/09/2017 for GSC 

Aim 3. To ensure that the Council adopts a modern approach to the delivery of its services and that they are efficient, effective and fit for purpose 
 
Objective 3.a. To have efficient arrangements in place to enable customers to easily contact the Council, in a variety of convenient ways, and in 
most cases have their service needs met effectively on first contact 
 

Action Lead Directorate Target Date . Status Progress notes 

5. Deliver projects of legislative importance, 
to ensure our services for customers are fit-
for-purpose, including: 

Management 
Board 

31-Mar-2018  On Target 
Q1 - Election and Accounts Closure ran smoothly.  internal Audit Programme 
approved and progressing in line with plan. 

 
 
Objective 3.b. To utilize modern technology to enable Council officers and members to work more effectively, in order to provide enhanced 
services to customers and make Council services and information easier to access 
 

Action Lead Directorate Target Date . Status Progress notes 

1. Trial flexible working for Building Control 
and Development Control officers through 
the use of new technologies 

Governance 31-Mar-2018  On Target 
Q1 - Await initial feedback from 2 authorities who have gone live with the system we 
wish to trail and then ICT indicate that the commencement of the the in-building 
control is imminent.  

4. Produce a plan to improve the 
management of information, to protect 
public data and comply with legislation 

Governance 31-Mar-2018  On Target 
Q1 - The Chief Internal Auditor chairing a group looking at our information asset 
register which will feed into the new working group on general data protection 
regulations, chaired by a director of governance on 24th July.  

6. Deliver the Corporate Communications 
project, to increase customer recognition of 
our services and improve communications 
with our customers 

Governance 31-Mar-2018  On Target 
Q1 - The communications PR team has recently concentrated on both the election 
and the Local Plan and the future focus will be to produce audit and analysis of our 
communications.  

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 86


	Agenda
	3 Notes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	5 BUILDING CONTROL PRESENTATION

	5 Terms of Reference and Work Programme
	Governance Select Committee Work Programme (Year-End 17.18)

	6 Equality Objectives 2016-2020 / (2018-2023) - 6 monthly review and combined Annual Report
	Appendix 1 Equality Objectives 2016 17 action plan
	Appendix 2 Equality_Impact_Assessment Form
	Appendix 3 Equality Impact Assessment Form - User Guide

	7 Local and Parliamentary Elections 2017 - Review
	8 Key Performance Indicators 2017/18 - Quarter 1 Performance
	01a - Key Performance Indicators 2017-18 Q1 Appendix 1

	9 Corporate Plan Key Action Plan 2017/18 - Quarter 1 Progress
	02a - Appendix 1- Key Action Plan 2017-18 Q1


